From: Endurance Osizimete

Sent: 14 May 2025 15:11

To: Mark Swallow

Subject: Re: [External]: Re: Application for Pool Party Lower Tower St 14.6.25

Most of the planing and site visit are scheduled for next week 19/05/25 - 24/05/25, but
call can be made to arrange for earlier execution

On Wed, 14 May 2025, 15:01 Mark Swallow wrote:
Endurance,

The documents that you have eluded to can you supply those to me and the items you
refer to as will be done need doing now and the documentation forwarding to me by
Friday.

Mark.

From: Endurance Osizimete

Sent: 14 May 2025 14:56

To: Mark Swallow

Subject: Re: [External]: Re: Application for Pool Party Lower Tower St 14.6.25

1. The Fire Risk Assessment for the Plot
Response:

A full fire risk assessment will be completed for the event plot. The key findings and
safety measures include:

Hazard Identification: Potential ignition sources include electrical equipment from
SGEvents, and temporary power supplies.

Control Measures:
Fire extinguishers (CO2 and foam) will be placed near all electrical sources, stage area.
A designated Fire Marshal will be on duty throughout the event.

Escape Routes will be clearly marked and unobstructed emergency exits will lead to the
open parking area and adjacent streets.

Training & Briefing: All event staff and volunteers will be briefed on fire safety procedures
before the event opens to the public.
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2. The Written Evacuation Plan.

A written evacuation planis in place and will be distributed to all staff and key
contractors prior to the event. It includes the following elements:

Emergency Exits:

The main exit route leads out to Ward Street and is wide enough for large crowd
movement.

A secondary emergency point will be at Donut N Chai car park area, providing an
alternative route in case the main exit is blocked.

Assembly Point:

The designated assembly point is located in the open space near New Summer Street,
well away from any potential hazards like electrical setups or the pool.

Evacuation Procedure:

In the event of an emergency, stewards and event staff will guide attendees to the
nearest exit in a calm, controlled manner.

Public address systems will be used to provide clear evacuation instructions.
Staff Roles:
A Fire Marshal and Safety Coordinator will lead the evacuation.

All staff will receive a pre-event briefing outlining exit locations, communication plans,
and roles during evacuation.

Emergency Services Access:

Clear access routes will be maintained throughout the event to allow for fire brigade,
ambulance, or police to enter without obstruction.

Ready for the third item — Risk Assessment for the Event and Pool Usage?
3. Risk Assessment for the Event and Usage of the Pool

A full risk assessment will be conducted covering both general event operations and
specific considerations for pool usage. Key points include:

General Event Risks:
Crowd Management:
Entry points will be monitored by security to control capacity.

Barriers will guide foot traffic and prevent overcrowding in high-traffic areas.
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Electrical Safety:

All power supply and electronic equipment, provided by SGEvents, will be placed
behind the stage, in a designated area inaccessible to the public.

All equipment will be operated by qualified personnel.
Trip/Slip Hazards:
Ground surfaces will be inspected prior to setup.

Wet areas, especially near the pool and drink stations, will be clearly marked and
regularly monitored.

Pool-Specific Risks:
Drowning or Injury Risk:
Trained lifeguards will be present at all times during pool usage.

Crowd will be supervised, and signs will prohibit running or unsafe behaviour near the
pool.

Chemical Safety:

No chemicals will be used in the pool. Clean water will be supplied via Severn Trent
using a metered fire hydrant.

Slips Around Pool:

Non-slip matting will be placed around the pool perimeter.
Volunteers and staff will monitor the area continuously.

4. Public Liability Insurance That Covers the Event
Response:

Public liability insurance is currently being arranged and will be in place before the event
date, in line with local authority requirements for public events.

Once the insurance certificate is received, a copy will be submitted to the relevant
authorities upon request.

5. Emergency Plan for the Pool (Including How Any Major Leak Would Be Dealt With)
Response:

An emergency plan specific to the poolis in place, covering both health and safety
concerns and structural risks like leaks.

Supervision & First Response:
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Trained lifeguards will be present at all times when the pool is in use.

In case of an incident in the pool, immediate first aid and evacuation procedures will be
activated.

Major Leak Protocol:

The poolis temporary and filled via a metered fire hydrant under guidance from Severn
Trent.

In the unlikely event of a major leak, the area will be immediately evacuated and
isolated.

Water will be diverted using sandbags which will be available on site as a precautionary
measure.

Drainage will be managed via an agreed method with Severn Trent, ensuring no flooding
or environmental damage occurs.

Emergency Services Coordination:
Local emergency services will be informed of the event beforehand.

Access routes will be kept clear to allow fire services, ambulance or water authorities to
respond quickly if needed.

On Wed, 14 May 2025, 13:04 Mark Swallow wrote:
Endurance,

Thank-you for responding so quickly. Can | ask for the following please to clarify issues
raised:

The fire risk assessment for the plot,

The written evacuation plan,

The risk assessment for the event and usage of the pool,

The public liability insurance that covers the event,

The emergency plan for the poolincluding how any major leak would be dealt with
Mark.

From: Endurance Osizimete

Sent: 14 May 2025 12:35

To: Mark Swallow

Subject: [External]: Re: Application for Pool Party Lower Tower St 14.6.25
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CAUTION: This email originated from outside of West Midlands Police. Do not click
links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.

If you are concerned, please send an email to
it_suspicious_email@westmidlands.police.uk

1. How are numbers going to be controlled (entry points, fencing, etc.)?

We will have a single controlled entry/exit point monitored by trained security staff. The
venue is fenced off and temporary crowd control barriers will be in place to ensure no
unauthorized access. Tickets will be scanned at entry to manage capacity.

2. Entry policy (including management of minors)

The eventis strictly 18+ and this will be enforced by checking valid ID at the entrance.
No minors will be allowed entry.

3. Ejection policy

Anyone acting in a disruptive, violent, or intoxicated manner will be asked to leave the
premises by our security team. A zero-tolerance policy will be in place for drugs or
antisocial behavior.

4. Security arrangements, numbers and deployment

We will have SIA-licensed security staff, with a minimum of 1 guard per 50 attendees .
Guards will be stationed at the entrance, around the pool area, and inside the main
event area. Security will remain onsite throughout the event.

5. Build/derig timescales and security arrangements
* Build: May 14th, 8 AM=12PM
* Derig: May 14th, 9 PM-12AM

Security will be present during both build and derig to oversee safety and restrict
access.

6. Power supplies

S.G Events will be providing all sound, lighting, and power supply for the event. A
qualified technician from SGEvents will oversee the installation, testing, and operation
of all electrical equipment. All equipment will be PAT tested, and cable covers will be
used to prevent trip hazards. S.G Events will also ensure that the power supply is
managed safely throughout the event."

7. Noise risk assessment and management plan

OFFICIAL


mailto:it_suspicious_email@westmidlands.police.uk

Sound levels will be monitored regularly using a decibel meter to ensure they remain
within local authority guidelines. Speakers will be oriented to minimize impact on
nearby properties. Music will end by 9 PM.

8. Car parking arrangements

Limited on-site parking will be available. Additional paid off-site parking options are
being coordinated with nearby facilities. Signage and stewards will guide attendees.

9. Emergency plan

An emergency evacuation plan will be in place, with all staff trained on procedures.
Emergency exits will be clearly marked and unobstructed. A central communication
system (radios) will be used.

10. Have you permission to use the car park?
Yes, permission has been obtained from the property owner.
11. Do you have public liability insurance in place?

Public liability insurance will be secured prior to the event. A copy of the insurance
certificate can be provided upon request.

12. Inclement weather plan

In the event of heavy rain or unsafe conditions, the event will be postponed or
cancelled. Covered areas such as marquees and gazebos will be available for shelter.

13. Toilet arrangements

Portable toilet units (including accessible options) will be available on-site with hand
sanitizing stations. Toilets will be cleaned throughout the event.

14. First Aid and lifeguard provisions

Certified First Aider will be present on-site, along with two qualified lifeguard stationed
at the pool area at all times.

15. Risk assessment for the event and use of the pool

Comprehensive risk assessments have been completed for both the general event and
pool use. These cover slips, trips, falls, drowning risks, electrical hazards, and crowd
control.

16. What are the arrangements for the sale of alcohol?

Alcohol will be sold by trained staff under a Temporary Event Notice. Challenge 25 will
be enforced. No outside alcohol is permitted.

17. Are children allowed at the event? Vulnerability policy?
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No, the eventis 18+ only. A clear entry policy and ID checks ensure minors are not
admitted.

18. What are the arrangements for showering at the event?

There are no formal shower facilities. Guests are advised to shower at home before and
after the event.

19. How will the pool be filled and drained, and are the relevant permissions in place?

| have spoken with Severn Trent, and they will be supplying water to fill the poolvia a
metered fire hydrant. Since we are not using chemicals in the pool, the water will be
safe for drainage. Severn Trent will assist with all necessary permissions for both the
water supply and drainage, ensuring compliance with local water regulations. The pool
will be drained into the appropriate sewer using an approved method."

On Wed, 14 May 2025, 09:34 Mark Swallow wrote:
Good Morning Endurance,

West Midlands Police have reviewed your Temporary Event Notice application for the
above and will need more information to make an informed decision about the
application.

Itis incumbent on West Midlands Police to ensure that the licensing objectives have
been considered and procedures and policies are in place to ensure a safe event that
promotes the licensing objectives.

West Midlands Police will require the below information to make an informed decision
regarding the application:

1. How are numbers going to be controlled entry points, fencing etc,
2. Entry policy (including management of minors)

3. Ejection policy

4. Security arrangements, numbers and deployment

5. Build / derig timescales and security arrangements

6. Power supplies

7. Noise risk assessment and management plan

8. Car parking arrangements

9. Emergency plan

10. Have you permission to use the car park.
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11. Have you public liability insurance in place

12. Inclement weather plan

13. Toilet arrangements

14. First Aid and lifeguard provisions

15. Risk assessment for the event and risk assessment for use of the pool

16. What are the arrangements for the sale of alcohol

17. Are children allowed at the event and if so could you supply the vulnerability policy,
18. What are the arrangements for showering at the event,

19. How will the pool be filled and drained and are the relevant permissions in place for
this.

Due to the tight legal timescales responsible authorities have to respond to TEN
applications, West Midlands Police will require the above information no later than
0900 Friday 16.5.25 to afford time to review the documentation.

Many thanks
Regards

Mark Swallow.

West Midlands Police

Birmingham Central Licensing Team.
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